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Giza - Cairo — Egypt Fax : (202) 35 37 3537
Postal Code : 12577 P.O. Box :(5) Smart Village
Auditor's Report

To.The Board of Di T ] Holding (S.A.E)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orascom Investment Holding (S.A.E) which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Company's management. Management is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, management responsibility includes, designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
management responsibility also includes selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
Except as described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance
with the Egyptian Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consclidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

As mentioned in detail in Note No. (12), the Company’s investment in Sarwa Capital -an associate- acquired
during the last year and accounted for by the equity method, is carried at USD 104,677 thousands on the
interim consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the Company’s share of
Sarwa Capital’s net income of USD 5,023 thousands is included in Company’s interim consolidated income
statement for the year then ended. The management didn’t provide us with the financial information prepared
in accordance with IFRS, accordingly, We were unable to audit the carrying amount of the Company’s
investment in Sarwa capital as at December 31, 2019, and the company’s share of Sarwa Capital 's net
income for the year then ended. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to
these amounts were necessary.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effect of possible adjustments as might have been determined to be necessary
for the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Orascom
Investment Holding) (S.A.E) as at December 31, 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of matter paragraph

Without considering the following as qualifications:

1. As mentioned in detail in note (34-1) from the accompanying notes of the condensed interim
consolidated financial statements, most of the world countries, including Egypt, were exposed during
the first quarter of 2020 to a state of slowdown and economic contraction as a result of the outbreak of
the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, and the governments of the world, including the
Egyptian government have made a packages of precautionary measures to prevent the spread of the
epidemic, these measures have led to a state of economic slowdown at the global and local levels,
which has shown its impact on all activities in different forms in Egypt, so this may have an important
impact on the elements of assets, liabilities and business results in the consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the next upcoming years, in addition to the potential impact on pre-defined
operational and marketing plans and future cash flows associated with them and as indicated in the
above-mentioned clarification, the Company's management is currently taking several measures to
confront this risk and reduce its impact on its financial position, however, in light of the instability and
uncertainty as a result of the current events, the magnitude of the impact of that event depends mainly
on the expected extent and in the time period at which this event is expected to end and its implications
and the Company's ability to achieve its plans to face this danger which is difficult to be determined at
the present time.

2. As mentioned in detail in note no. (12), the Company has a significant influence in its investee
“Koryolink” in North Korea, the investment is amounting to USD 38 M as of December 31, 2019,
Which the Company classified as investments in associate. Considering that Koryolink is operating
under an international ban, operational and financial restrictions imposed by the international
community, which lead to difficulties in transferring profits abroad and repatriate the funds to their home
country.

KPMG Hazem Hassan

_/-ﬁ?_éﬁj.fﬁﬁp———

Public accountants and consultants

. KPMG Hazem Hassan
Public Accountants and Consultants

Cairo October 1, 2020
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION as at

(in thousands of USS)

Asscts

Property and equipment {net)
Intangible assets (net)

Investment Property (net)
Investments in associates

Other non-current financial assets
Other Non current assels

Total non-current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other current financial assets

Other current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale

Total current asscts

Total Asscis

Equity and Liabilitics

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained camings

Equity attributable to cquity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Linbilities

Non-current borrowings

Other non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilitics

Current borrowings

Trade payables and other current Linbilitics
Income 1ax liabilities

Current provisions

Liabilities associated 10 assels held for sale
Total current liabilitics

Total linhilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Chief Financial Officer

Khalid E!,laicy

Nole

14
15
16
12
17
20

19
17
20
21
3z

22

23
24
18

23
24

25
32

Auditor’s report "attached’

** Restated

December 31,2019 Dceember 31, 2018
73,279 80,941
24,510 33,851
60,747 64,290

143,078 123,439
17,381 14,086
16,574 13,224

335,569 329,831

506 413
54,779 53,269
4,940 105,126
13,461 1,114
63,438 106,565
13,850 .
150,974 276,487
486, 606,318
366,148 366,148
(142,231) (160,523)
36,773 65,216
260,690 270,841
16,861 18,738
277,551 289,579
24,007 58,803
7,642 25,844
12,450 15,265
44,099 99,912
47,485 111,322
74,466 74,988
5,806 7,476
29,862 23,041
7,274 ~
164,893 216,827
208,992 316,739
486,543__ 606318

Exccutive Chairman and Managing Directer

N fywlrls .
Lo

{The notes | to 35 arc an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statemenis)
** Restalement to correct the translation reserve and retained eamings for the year ended December 31, 2018 (Note No, 35).
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(in thousands of LUSS, except per share amounts)

Continved operations

Revenues

Other income

Purchases and services

Other expenses

Personne! cost

Depreciation and amortization
Impairmeni charges

Disposal of non-current asscts

Operating (loss) / income

Financial income

Financial expense

Forcign cxchange (loss)

Share of profits of investment in associales
Impairment of invesiments in associate
{loss)/Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

(Loss)/ Profit for the ycar

Discontinued gperations

{Loss) from discontinued operation {net of income 1ax)

(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive (loss):

ltems that may be sequent reclassified to profit or loss net of tax

Change in fair value of investmenis
Currency translation difTerences

Total comprehensive (loss) for the year
(Loss) for the year attributable (o:
Owners of the company

Non-controlling intcrests

Total comprehensive (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share from continuing operations - hasic and diluted (in USS)
Earnings per share from discontinued operations - basic and diluied (in USS)

Chief Financial Officer

Khalid Ellaicy

g .

FELA oA

ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT QR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

**Restated

Naote For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31

December 2019 Dceember 2018
6 69,714 74,659
733 12,490
7 (25,842) (30,386)
8 (12,341} (14,127)
9 (24,598) 22,547)
10 (7,539) (7,564)
(8,203) (1,020)
58 (i187)
(8,018} 11,318
I 843 3,450
1" {14,005) (9,767)
1" (4,655) (1,816)
12 170,526 159,093
12 (165.511) (159,093)
(20,820) 3,185
13 (5,724) (5.976)
(26,544) (2,791)
kS (359) (59.252)
(26,903) (62,043)
(340) (203}
12,897 57,751
(14,346) (4,495)
(25,792) (59,249)
(1,111) {2,794)
(26,903) (62,043)
(10,843) 2,277
(3,503) (6,772)
(14,346) {4,495)
26 (0.0056) (0.001)
26 0.0007 ©.00

Executive Chairman and Managing Dircclor

Naguib Sawigis -
3,
Fs

(The notes 1 10 35 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)

** Restatement lo correct the translation reserve and retained eamings for the year ended December 31, 2018 {Noie No. 35),
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR_

(in thousands of USS)

(Loss)! profit for the year before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges
Interest expense
Finance income
Foreign exchange loss
Impairment of financial asscts
(Loss) / Gain form disposal of assets
Share of profit of associate
Impairment of associate
Changes in other assets
Change in deferred income
Changes in other liabilitics
Cash flows (used in) operating activitics
Income taxes paid
Interest collected
Dividends to employees
Net Cash flows (used in) operating activities
Cash out flow for investments in
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Acquisitions of new investments
Change in Deposits and financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other Financial Assets
Cash collected from sales of investment
Cash flows (used in) investing activitics
Cash flows from f{inancing activities
Interest Paxd
Proceeds from loan and bank facilities
Payments for loans and bank facilities
Cash collected from time deposit at bank
Cash collected from pledget time deposits
Change in restricted deposits
Cash flows (used in) / generated by financing activitics
Net cash (used in) continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net cash (used in) / generated by operating activities
Net cash generated by investing activitics
Net cash {used in) Financing activities
Net cash {used in) / pencrated by discontinued operations
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year

Chief Financint Officer

Represented
Year Ended 31 Year Ended 31
December 2019 December 2018
(20,820) 3,185
7,539 7,564
14,005 9,767
(843) (3,450)
4,655 1,816
8,203 1,020
(58) 187
(170,526) (159,093)
165,511 159,093
(6,842) (10,016)
4,701 (11,030)
(27.727) {4,274)
(22,202) (5,231)
(8,373) (20,774)
842 3,451
(838) {888)
(30,571) (23.442)
(7,821) (6,126)
(237 {739)
(33) (88,793)
205 (3,142)
179 46
- 193
104 -
2.220 -
{5]83] (98.561)
(10,867) (3,315
12,981 110,142
(104,493} (22,680)
08,444 -
333 -

- {66,757)
(3,602) 11.390
{39,556) (110,613)
(4,810) 10,349

- 74,950
- (292)
{4.810} 85.007_
(44,366) {25,6006)
106,565 134,142
1,239 (1.971)
63,438 106.565

Y

(The notes 1 10 35 are an integral pant of these Consolidated Financial Statements)

Exccutive Chairman and Managing Dircctor
Naguib Sawiris .
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

General information

Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.(*OIH" or the “Company”) is a joint stock company with its head office in Cairo,
Egypt. The Company was established on November 29, 2011 (the “inception™) and until this date the businesses of the
Company were performed under various entities which were controlled by Orascom Telecom Holding, S.A.E. (“OTH").
As part of a larger transaction pursuant to which VimpelCom Lid had acquired OTH, its shareholders agreed to affect the
demerger, whereby, OTH was split into two companies, OTH and the Company (“Demerger”}, The Demerger resulted
in the transfer of certain telecomn, cable and media and technology assets (the “OIH Assets™) to the Company.

The Company and the OIH Assets (together the “Group”) are a mobile telecommunications business operating in high
growth emerging markets in the Middle East, Africa and Asia. The Company is a subsidiary of Orascom Telecom Media
and Technology Investments S.a.r.l. (the “Ultimate Parent Company™),

The Company’s shares are listed on the Egyptian Stock Exchange and its GDRs are listed on the London Stock
Exchange.

The information presented in this document has been presented in thousands of United States Dollar (“USS$"), except
earnings per share and unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”) were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on October 1, 2020,

Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These Censolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS") and its interpretations as adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and all
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee (“IFRIC”) and all interpretations of the
Standing Interpretations Committee (*SIC”). The IFRS were applied consistently 1o all the periods presented in this
document.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concetn basis, as Management have verified the
absence of financial, management or other indicators that could indicate critical issues regarding the Group's ability to
meet its obligations in the foreseeable future, and in particular in the next 12 months. The description of the methods
through which the Group manages financial risks is contained in the following note 4 relating to "Financial risk
management”,

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
assets and liabilities, incfuding derivative instruments that are measured at fair value.

For presentational purposes, the current/non-current distinction has been used for the statement of financial position, The
statement of comprehensive income is presented using the one-statement approach, dividing items of comprehensive
income between a separate income statement and a separate statement of comprehensive income. Expenses are analysed
in the income statement using a classification based on their nature. The indirect method has been selected to present the
cash flow statement.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of the conventional historical cost method, except
for the valuation of financial assets and liabilities, in which case the application of the criterion is mandatory fair value.
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRSs™)

2.2.1 New currently effective requirements

Effective date New standards or amendments

January 1, 2019 IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatmenis

January 1, 2019 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9)
January 1, 2019 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures {Amendments to IAS 28)
January 1, 2019 Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to [AS 19)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle {Amendments to [FRS 3, IFRS

2019
January 1, 201 11, 1AS 12 and IAS 23)

IFRIC Interpretation 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Group adopted IFRIC Interpretation 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments. The interpretation provides
provides specific guidance to recognise and measure the accounting impact of tax uncertainties which 1AS 12 did not
address. Particularly, IFRIC 23 specifies how to determine the unit of account and the recognition and measurement
guidance to be applied to that unit, as well as when 10 reconsider the accounting for a tax uncertainty, The interpretation
is effective on or after January 1, 2019. The Group has reviewed its previously designed model to account for tax
uncertainties and assessed that it is consistent with the more specific IFRIC 23 requirements,

Amendments to IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

The Group adopted Amendments to [FRS 9 - Financial Instruments. These amendments allow, under certain conditions,
for a prepayable financial asset with negative compensation payments to be measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The amendments also contain a clarification relating to the accounting for a
modification or exchange of a financial liability measured at amortized cost that does not result in the derecognition of
the financial liability. The amendments are effective on or after January 1, 2019. There was no effect from the adoption
of these amendments.

Amendments to 1AS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The Group adopted Amendments to IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures. These amendments
clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied. The amendments are effective
on or after January 1, 2019. There was no effect from the adoption of these amendments.

Amendments to IAS 19 - Employee Benefits

The Group adopted Amendments to IAS 19 - Employee Benefits. These amendments require that when there is a change
to a defined benefit plan (an amendment, curtailment or settlement) the company use the adopted assumptions from the
remeasurement of a net defined benefit liability or asset to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder
of the reporting period after the change to the plan. The amendments are effective on or after Januvary 1, 2019, There was
no effect from the adoption of these amendments,
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The Group adopted Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle. The improvements have amended four standards
with effective date of January 1, 2019: i) IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, in relation to ebtaining control of a business
which was previously accounted for as an interest in a joint operation; ii} IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements, in relation to
obtaining joint control of a business which was previously accounted for as a joint operation; iii} IAS 12 - Income Taxes,
clarifying the treatment of taxes in relation to dividend payments; and iv) IAS 23 - Bommowing Costs, clarifying the
treatment of borrowings which were previously capitalized when the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale.
There was no effect from the adoption of these amendments.

2.2.2 Forthcoming requirements

Effective date New standards or amendments

January 1, 2020 Definition of Materiality (Amendment to IAS 1 and TIAS 8)

January 1, 2020 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)

January 1, 2020 Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

January 1, 2021 IFRS 17 *Insurance Contract”

January 1, 2020 Improve the definition of "business™ (Amendment to [FRS 3)

January 1, 2022 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

Available for optional adoption/ Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Effective date deferred indefinitely | Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28)

2.3 Summary of main accounting principles and policies

The main accounting principles and policies adopted in preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements are
set our below. These policies have been applied consistently by the Group entities.

Basis of conselidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Consolidated Financial
Statements include the financial statements of the Company and the financial statements of those entities over
which the Company has control, both directly or indirectly, from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group until the date such control ceases.

The financial stalements used in the consolidation process are those prepared by the individual Group entities in
accordance with IFRS,

The consolidation procedures used are as follows:

»  The assets and liabilities and income and expenses of subsidiaries are included on a line-by-line basis, allocating
to non-controlling interests, where applicable, the share of equity and profit or loss for the year that is attributable
to them. The resulting balances are presented separately in equity and the consolidated income statement; the
acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combinaticn are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date, The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets;

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with IFRS 9 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity;

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the interest acquired in the net fair value at the
acquisition date of the assets and liabilities of the entity or business acquired. Goodwill relating to investments
accounted for using the equity method is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Goodwill is initially
measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the fair values of non-centrolling
interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If the consideration is lower than the
fair value of the nel assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss;

Acquisition costs on business combinations are expensed as incurred;

The purchase of equity holdings from non-controlling holders are accounted for as equity transactions that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners, The difference between fair value of any consideration
received and the relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity;

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions carried out between companies consolidated on a line-by-line basis
and the respective tax effects are eliminated if material, as are corresponding balances for receivables and
payables, income and expense, and finance income and expense.

Assaciates

Associates are investments in companies where the Group exercises a significant influence, which is presumed to exist

when the Group holds voting rights between 20% and 50%. Associates are accounted for using the equity method.

The equity method is as follows:

The Group’s share of the profit or loss of an investee is recognised in the income statement from the date when
significant influence begins up to the dale when that significant infiuence ceases or when the investment is
classified as held for sale. Invesiments in associates with negative shareholders’ equity are impaired and a
provision for its losses is accrued only if the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to cover such losses,
Equity changes in investees accounied for using the equity method that do not result from profit or loss are
recognised directly in consolidated equity reserves;

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value;

if the ownership interest in an associate is reduced, but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit and loss;

Unrealised gains and losses generated from transactions between the Company or its subsidiaries and its
investees accounted for using the equity method are eliminated on consolidation for the portion pertaining to the
Group; unrealised losses are eliminated unless they represent impairment,

Management fees received from associates are included within revenue.

Appendix A includes a list of the entities included in the scope of consolidation.
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Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity that
is subject to joint control that is when the strategic financial and operating policy decisions relating to the activities of the
joint operation require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Joint operation arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate entity in which each venture has an interest are
referred to as jointly controlled entities. The Group recognises its direct right to the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses of joint operations and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses except
when the entities are in the incorporation phase or have not started significant operations until the date of the consolidated
financial statements. Investments classified as held for sale, are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, where they are stated at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value
less costs to sell.

The Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of jointly controlled entities are combined with the
corresponding items in the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-line basis.

Where the Group transacts with its jointly controlled entities, unrealized profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the joint operation.

The following table provides a list of the jointly controlled entities, in which Beltone Financial Holding holds direct and
indirect interests:

Interest percentape

Segment Country Direct and indirect interest in entity
Misr Beltone Asset Management Mutual funds management Egypt 50%

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional currency of the Company
is Egyptian pound. The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in *US Dollars’ (US$), which is the Group's
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the relevant entity at the exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monelary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated,
at the reporting date, into the prevailing exchange rates at that date. Foreign currency exchange differences arising on the
settlement of transactions and the translation of the statement of financial position are recognised in the income statement.
Gains and losses on long-term financing provided 1o Group subsidiaries by the parent company, for which settlement is
neither planned noer likely to occur, are initially recognised in other comprehensive income and reclassified to the income
statement on disposal of the relevant entity.
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Group companies

The financial statements of the Group entities are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
e Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing exchange rate;
¢ Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the year;

o  All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity in the “translation reserve”
until the group loses control of the relevant subsidiary. When the group disposes of a foreign operation the
translation reserve, previously recognised in equity, is transferred to the income statement;

¢  Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and are translated at the closing exchange rate; and

s In the preparation of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of foreign subsidiaries are translated
at the average exchange rate for the year.

The exchange rates applied in relation to the US$ are as follows:

pyeragefontheyceag Closing rate as of Average for the Closing rate as of
TR December 31, 2019 e December 31, 2018
December 31, 201% % December 31, 2018 ’
Egyptian Pound (EGP) 0.0596 0.0625 0056 0.056
Pakistan Rupee (PKR) 0.0067 0.0065 0.0083 0.0072
Euro (EUR) 1.1193 11210 11811 11469
DRRK Won (KPW) 0.0092 0.0093 0.009 0.009

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at purchase cost or production cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure directly atiributable 1o bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for use and any dismantling and removal costs which may be incurred because of contractual obligations,

which require the asset to be returned to its original state and condition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred. Each asset
is treated separately if it has an autonomously determinable useful life and value. Depreciation is charged at rates
calculated to write off the costs over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis from the date the asset is

available and ready for use.

The useful lives of property and equipment and their residual values are reviewed and updated, where necessary, at
least at each year-end. Land is not depreciated. When a depreciable asset is composed of identifiable separate
components whose useful lives vary significantly from those of other components of the asset, depreciation is

calculated for each component separately, applying the “component approach”,
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The useful lives estimated by the Group for the various categories of property and equipment are as follows.

Number of vears
Land and buildi
Buildings 50
Leasehold improvements and renovations 3-8
Plant and machinery 8-15
Cable svsiem and equipment 4-20
Commercial and other tangible assets
Tools 5-10
Computer equipment 3-5
Furniture and fixturcs 5-10
Vehicles 3-6

Gains or losses arising from the sale or retirement of assets are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset soid or retired and are recognised in the income statement in the

period incurred under “Disposal of non-current assets”.

Leases

With the adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use. Each lease payment is allocated between the principal liability
and finance costs. Finance costs are charged to the income statement over the lease period using the effective interest

rate method. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability; (ii) any lease paymenis made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; (iii)
any initial direct costs and, if applicable, {(iv) restoration costs. Payments associated with short-term leases and leases

of low-value assets are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis.

Lease liabilities are measured at the net present value of the following: (i) fixed lease payments, (ii) variable lease
payment that are based on an index or a rate and, if applicable, (iii) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees, and (iv} the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
1o exercise that option. Lease liabilities do not include any non-lease components that may be included in the related

contracts.

Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the funds

necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straighi-line basis over the entire term of the contract, unless the contract provides
for the transfer of ownership at the end of the lease term or the cost of the lease refiects the fact that the lessee will exercise
the purchase option. In this case, the depreciation must be the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the duration of the
contract. The estimated useful lives for right-of-use assets are calculated according to the same criterion applied to owned
tangible assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is decreased by any impairment losses and adjusted to reflect any
remeasurement of the associated lease liability.

In the statement of financial position, the Group presents right-of-use assets within tangible assets and lease liabilities
within current and non-current borrowings,

In the income statement, interest expense on |ease liabilities constitutes a component of financial expenses and is shown
separately from the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
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The Group recognizes deferred taxation on right-of-use assets and on lease liabilities in relation to contracts for which
IFRS 16 is applied for the first time. Management has assessed the existing tax legislation and interpreted the accounting
principles applied, concluding the recognition of deferred tax is appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful

lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially

recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are

acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.
Licenses

Costs for the purchase of telecommunication licenses are capitalised. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis
such as to write off the cost incurred for the acquisition of a right over the shorter of the period of its expected use

and the term of the underlying agreement, starting from the date on which the acquired license may be exercised.
Software

Acquired software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. Software licenses are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful life (between 3 to 8 years), while

software maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Costs incurred on development of software products are recognised as intangible assets when the Group has
intentions to complete and use or sell the assets arising from the project, considering the existence of a market for
the asset, its commercial and technological feasibility, its costs can be measured reliably and there are adequate
financial resources to complete the development of the asset. Other development expenditures are recognised in the

income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of a software product include sofiware development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development expenditures that do nol meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not

recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
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Number of years

Rights of use 17-20
Trademarks 20
Contractual agreements with customers 20
Computer software 5

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assels that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or imangible assets not ready to use — are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. In determining an asset’s value in use the estimated future cash flows are discounted using a
pre-tax rate that reflects the market’s current assessment of the cost of money for the investment period and the
specific risk profile of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separalely identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units, “CGU™). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that

suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the CGUs,
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
intemal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level. Goodwill impairment reviews
are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently

reversed.

Investment Property

Investment properties are property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held by the Group to earn rental
income or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment properties are initially measured at cost. The cost of

a purchased investment property comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure.

Directly attributable expenditure includes, for example, professional fees for legal services, property transfer taxes
and other transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group has elected to measure investment properties
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is
derecognised upon disposal, when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits expected
from its disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit
or loss in the period of the retirement or disposal. Reclassifications to / from investment property are made when,

and only when, there is a change of use.
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Revenue from operating lease rentals is recognised on a straight-line basis over the relevant term of the lease. The

rental income generated by invesiment properties is recognised within revenue in the consolidated income statement.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each

component of the investment properties. The estimated useful lives of leased units are estimated at 50 years.

Financial assets

Trade receivables, current assets and current financial assets and other receivables are originated in the ordinary
course of business and held within a business model with the objective to hold the receivables in order to collect
contractual cash flows that meet the 'solely payments of principal and interest’ criterion under IFRS 9. Consequently,
they are initially recognised at fair value adjusted by directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
recognised at amortised cost on the basis of the effective interest rale method (namely the interest rate that, at the
time of initial recognition, renders the present value of future cash flows and the carrying amount equal),
appropriately adjusted to take any write-downs into account, through the recognition of a provision for doubtful
accounts. Receivables due from customers and other financial receivables are included in current assets. Should be
the expiry date over twelve months from the reporting date, they are classified as non-current assets. Receivables

with maturities greater than twelve months and no significant financing component are discounted to present value,

Equity investments for which there is no quoted market price in an active market and there is insufficient financial
information in order to determine fair value may be measured at cost as an estimate of fair value, as permitted by
IFRS 9. The Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) upon the initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held to sell. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. Generally, any dividends from these investments are
recognised in other income from investments within Result from investments when the Group’s right (o receive
payment is established. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and will not be reclassified to the
Consolidated Income Statement in subsequent periods. Impairment losses (and the reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at fair value through OCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair

value in OCI.

Investments are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through OCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income

using the effective interest rate method.

The Group measures equity investments at fair value. When there is no quoted market price in an active market and
there is insufficient financial information in order to determine fair value may be measured at cost as an estimate of
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as

other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through OCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss

is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, all financial assets, other than those measured at fair value with a balancing
entry in the income statement, are analysed to assess whether there is objective evidence that financial assets may
be impaired. Under IFRS 9, a forward-looking expected credit loss model must be applied when assessing
impairment. In making impairment assessments, the Group applies the standard simplified approach to estimate the
lifetime expected credit losses and considers its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the nature of the Group’s receivables and economic environment. If any such evidence exists, an

impairment loss is recognised within financial expenses.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make contractual payments for a significant period of time.
For financial assets recognised at amortised cost, when an impairment loss has been identified, the value of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of
expected future cash flows, discounted on the basis of the original effective interest rate. This amount is recognised

in the income statement.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities consisting of borrowings, trade payables and other obligations are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the related contractual clauses and are initially recognised at fair value, adjusted by any directly

attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities and trade payables, with the exception of derivative financial instruments, are measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derivative financial instruments and embedded derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. Fair value gains and losses on all of the Groups derivaltive financial instruments are

recognised in the income statement within finance income and expense.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair

value through profit or loss.
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Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets are derecognised when one of the following conditions is met:

® the contractual right to receive the cash flows from the asset has expired;

®  the Group has substantially transferred all of the risks and rewards related to the asset, transferring its rights
to receive the cash flows from the asset or assuming a contractual obligation to pass the cash flows received
to one or more beneficiaries by virtue of an agreement that meets the requirements set out in IFRS 9 (pass
through test);

e the Group has not transferred nor substantially maintained all of the risks and rewards related to the

financial asset, but has transferred control.

The financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished, namely when the contractual obligation has
been met, cancelled or prescribed. An exchange of debt instruments with substantially different contractual terms,
must be accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Similarly, a substantial variation of the contractual terms of an existing financial liability must be accounted

for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new ﬁnancial.liability.
Offsetting financial assets and liabilities
The Group offsets financial assets and liabilities if and only if:

o there is a legally exercisable right to offset the amounts recognised in the financial statements;

* there is an intention either to offset or to dispose of the asset and settle the liability at the same time.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount lo its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash-flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income

on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of purchase cost or production cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the
weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. When necessary, obsolescence allowances are made for

slow-moving and obsolete inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less. In the consolidated statement of financial position,

bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except

to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date in the countries where the Group’s subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject (o interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected

to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the balance sheel liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Consolidated Financial Statements,
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of goodwill or the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related

deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be

available against which the temporary differences can be wiilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it

is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the near future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities

will be realised simultaneously.

Business Combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combination, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

¢  Fair values of the assets transferred;

e Liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

e  Equity interests issued by the group;

»  Fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement and;

o  Fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary;
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Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with

limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:

* Consideration transferred;
s Amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

e  Acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly on profit or

loss as a bargain purchase.

Where the settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate,
being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable

terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial

liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from

such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

In case that initial treatment of business combination is not complete at the end of financial period consolidated, the
group recognises temporary amounts for accounts and during the measurement period not to exceed one year from
the date of acquisition. The adjustment is performed retrospectively for completion of new information (Intangible

assets, deferred taxes/provisions and others).

Provisions

Provisions are only recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising from past
events that will probably result in a future outflow of resources, and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The amount provided represents the best estimate of the
present value of the outlay required to meet the obligation. The interest rate used in determining the present value

of the liability reflects current market rates and takes into account the specific risk of each liability.
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when the control over a product or service is transferred to a customer. Revenue is measured

at the transaction price, which is based on the amount of consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange
for transferring the promised goods or services 1o the customer and excludes any sales incentives as well as taxes
collected from customers that are remitted to government authorities. The transaction price will include estimates

of variable consideration to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of revenue recognised will not occur.

Where a contract includes multiple performance obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on the stand-alone selling prices. Management has exercised judgment in determining
performance obligations, variable consideration, allocation of transaction price and the timing of revenue

recognition.

The Group does nol recognise any assets associated with the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer that are expected to be not recovered. The majority of revenue is recognised at a point-in-time or over a
period of one year or less, and the Group applies the practical expedient to recognise the incremental costs of
oblaining a contract as an expense when incurred if the amortisation period of the asset that would otherwise be

recognised is one year or less.

Specifically, the Group mainly recognises revenue from financial services, cables and mobile traffic. The criteria

followed by the Group in recognising ordinary revenue are as follows:
Revenue of the financial services

Revenue of the financial services mainly refer to Investment banking and management fees. When the outcome of
a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the transaction
shall be recognised over time by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting
period. Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change.
Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in

which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

More specifically, investment banking revenue refers to security and investment banking fees recognised when

complete the implementation of the service.

Management fees of funds and portfolios are recognised as revenue, as the services are rendered, in accordance with

the contractual terms of each fund and portfolio.

Incentive fees are recognised as revenue based on predetermined percentages agreed with clients, calculated by
reference to the annual return on each fund or portfolio, but only to the extent that the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably and it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group.

Sale commissions represent commissions on sale of securities for clients in local or global stock exchanges,
calculated at point in time on the basis of specified rates agreed with clients as a percentage of the sale transaction.
Purchase commissions represent commissions on purchase of securities for clients in local or global stock
exchanges, calculated at point in time on the basis of specified rates agreed with clients as a percentage of the

purchase transaction.
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Custodian fees are recognised as the difference between fees collected from clients and those incurred or paid to
custodians. They are recognised i) over time according to contracts signed with clients; ii) at point in time as

commissions for collecting coupons for customers (the collection of these coupons are on behalf of the customers).

Revenue from cable seement

Revenue from bandwidth capacity sales is recognised over time on the basis of usage of bandwidth by the customers.
Advances received from customers, for which the service has not yet been provided is disclosed as deferred income.
Otherwise the transaction price is adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component included in advance

payments such as IRU contracts.
Revenue from mobile traffic

Revenue arising from post-paid traffic, interconnection and roaming is recognised over time on the basis of the
actual usage made by each subscriber and telephone operator. Such revenue includes amounts paid for access to and
usage of the group network by customers and other domestic and international telephone operators. Revenue from
the sale of prepaid cards and recharging is recognised over time on the basis of the prepaid traffic actually used by
subscribers during the period. The unused portion of traffic at period end is recognised deferred.income. Revenue
from mobile (prepaid or subscription) activation and/or substitution, prepaid recharge fees and the activation of new
services and tariff plans is recognised at a point in time for the full amount at the moment of activation independently

of the period in which the actual services are rendered by the Group.

Revenue fiom rental

Rental income from the investment property owned by the Company is recognised over time based on the maturity
lease agreements

Earnings per share
Basic: Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the

Company, both from continuing and discontinued operations, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares.

Diluted: Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders

of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company outstanding during the year
where, compared to basic eamings per share, the weighied average number of shares outstanding is modified to
include the conversion of all dilutive potential shares, while the profit for the year is modified to include the effects
of such conversion net of taxation. Diluted earnings per share are not calculated when there are losses as any dilutive

effect would improve earnings per share.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner which is consistent with the internal reporting information provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the board of directors of the

Company.
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale
Non-current assets (or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities) that are expected to be recovered primarily

through sale rather than through continuing use are classified as held for sale. Immediately before classification as
held for sale, the assets (or components of a disposal group) are re-measured in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies. Thereafier the assets and liabilities held for sale (or disposal group) are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is first allocated
to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to
inventories, financial assels and deferred tax assets, which continue 10 be measured in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent losses on re-
measurement are recognised in the income statement. Subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell may be
recognised in the income statement only to the extent of the cumulative impairment loss that has been recognised

previously.

Discontinued operations
A discontinued operalion is a component of the Group’s business that represents a separate major line of business

or geographical area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale, Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation,
the comparative income statement is re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the

comparative period.

Use of estimates and critical judgements

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires that the directors apply accounting policies and
methodologies that, in some circumstances, are based upon complex and subjective judgments and estimates that
are based on historical experience and assumptions that are considered reasonable and realistic at the time,
considering the relevant circumstances. The application of such estimates and assumplions affects the amounts
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and cash flows, as well as in the notes. Actual results might differ from such
estimales due to the uncertainty surrounding the assumptions and conditions upon which estimates are based. The
accounting estimates that require the more subjective judgment of management in making assumptions or estimates
regarding the effects of matters (hat are inherently uncertain and for which changes in conditions may significantly

affect the results reported in these Consolidated Financial Siatements are summarised below.
Valuation of financial instruments

For some financial instruments that are not traded in an active market and included in the financial statements such
as financial derivatives, Management estimates fair value using valuation techniques based on inputs and
assumptions, some of which are linked to quoted market prices and others on management's estimations.
Management applied reasonable option valuation models during the period in estimating the fair value of these
financial instruments. Management also conducted a sensitivity analysis for changes in the estimated fair value of
these instruments and changes in inputs used for assessing the reasonableness of results reached using the acceptable

valuation models.
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FCOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Impairment of non-current assets

Non-current assets are reviewed to determine whether there are any indications that the net carrying amount of these
assets may not be recoverable and that they have suffered an impairment loss that needs to be recognised. In order
to determine whether any such elements exist, it is necessary to make subjective measurements, based on
information obtained within the Group, in the market and on past experience. When indicators are identified that an
asset may have become impaired, the Group estimates the impairment loss using suitable valuation techniques. The
identification of elements indicating that a potential impairment exists and estimates of the amount of the
impairment, depend on factors that may vary in time, affecting management’s assessmenis and estimates.

Impairmemnt of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). The
Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events (a “loss event”) that
occurred afier the initial recognition of a financial asset or a group of financial assets, the estimated future cash
flows of an asset or a group of assets have been affected.

The Group monilors impairment losses recognised, and where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of a financial asset or a group of financial assets is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset.

Intangibles
Intangible assets constitute a significant part of the Group’s total assets and the scheduled amortisation charges from

a significant part of the annual operation expenses. The useful economic lives arrived at, on the basis of
management’s estimates and assumptions, have a major impact on the valuation of intangible assets.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the intangible asset is estimated, in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1o which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, intangible assets are allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis

can be identified.

Depreciation of non-current assets

The cost of property and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis throughout the useful economic life of the
relevant asset. The useful economic life is determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and is based
upon historical experience for similar assets, market conditions, and forecasts regarding future events that could
have an impact on useful life, including changes in technology. Therefore, the actual useful economic life may differ
from the estimated useful life. The Group periodically evaluates sector and technology changes in order to update
the remaining useful life. Such periodic updates could result in a change during the depreciation period, and

therefore also in the depreciation in future periods.

frdt
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Taxes
Income taxes (both current income tax and deferred taxes) are determined in each country where the Group operates

in accordance with a prudent interpretation of the applicable tax regulations.

This process results in complex estimates in determining taxable and deductible income and taxable temporary
differences between accounting and tax values. In particular, deferred tax assets are recognised when it is probable
that there will be future taxable income against which the temporary differences can be utilised. The assessment of
the recoverability of deferred tax assets, in relation to tax losses that can be used in future periods and deductible

temporary differences, considers the estimated future taxable income on the basis of a prudent tax planning.

Goodwill
The impairment test on goodwill is carried out by comparing the carrying amount of cash-generating units and their

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is the higher of fair value, less costs to sell,
and its value in use, This complex valuation process entails the use of methods such as the discounted cash flow
method which uses assumptions to estimate cash flows. The recoverable amount depends significantly on the
discount rate used in the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash flows and the growth rate

used for the extrapolation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Management assess events and circumstances indicating that the Group may have an obligation resulting in the

ordinary course of business, Management applies its judgment in determining whether the recognition criteria have
been meet through assessing the probability of the obligation, making assumptions about timing and amounts of

future cash outflows expected to settle the obligation.

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors
The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including foreign exchange risk and cash flow and

fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. In particular, the Group is exposed to risks from movements
in exchange rates, interest rates and market prices. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s performance
through ongoing operational and finance activities. The management has overall responsibility for the establishment

and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.

Market Risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising when its business transactions
are in currencies other than its functional currency. The main currencies to which the Group is exposed are the US
dollar (*'US$"), the Pakistani Rupee (“PKR"), the Euro (“EUR"}, DPRK Won (“KPW") and the Egyptian Pound
(“EGP™).
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising in two separate ways:

a) Foreien exchange operations risk
The Group entities predominantly execute their operating activities in their respective functional

currencies. Some Group subsidiaries are, however, exposed to foreign currency risks in connection with
scheduled payments in currencies that are not their functional currencies. In general, this relates to foreign
cutrency denominated supplier payables due to capital expenditures and receivables. The Group monitors
the exposure to foreign currency risk arising from operaling activities and in general does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge foreign exchange exposure in relation to ordinary operating activities,

At year end, major net assets / (net liabilities) foreign currencies positions presented in ‘US Dollars’ (US$),

were as follows:

(lu thousand $US) 2019 2018
UsD 20,107 93,903
Euro 13,236 (5.414)
PKR (26,924) (15,920)
GBP 47 468
Other 11,814 11,386

The increase in other net assets as of December 31, 2019 refer to positions in Brazilian Reals,

b) Asof December 31, 2019, if the functional currencies had increased/(decreased) by 10% against the USS,
Euro, Egyptian pound, and DPRK Won, with all other variables held constant, the translation of foreign
currency on cash and cash equivalent would have resulted in an increase/(decrease) of US$ 4,768 thousand
of net profit (2018: US§ 7,506 thousand of net profit).

Foreign exchange translation risk
Due Io its international presence, the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements are exposed to foreign

exchange fluctuations, as these affect the translation of subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies to the USS$ (the Group's presentational currency). The currencies concerned are mainly
the Egyptian pound, the Pakistani Rupee, DPRK Won and the Euro. This represents a translational risk
rather than a financial risk given that these movements are posted directly to equity in the cumulative

translation reserve.

Price risk
The Group has limited exposure to equity instruments of other entities that are publicly traded.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Groups interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings received al variable interest rates expose the Group

to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group has not entered into any derivative financial instruments to hedge its
exposure 1o cash flow interest rate risk.

All borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2019 (US$ 71,492 thousand) and December 31, 2018 (US$ 170,125
thousand) are al a fixed interest rate, at a variable interest rate and interest rate free.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. The Group calculates the impact on profit or loss
of a defined interest rate shift. The same interest rate shift is used for all currencies.

The impact of a 1% interest rate shift would be a maximum increase/decrease in 2019 finance costs of US$ 370

thousand (2018: US$ 520 thousand).
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Fair value estimation
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

e  The fair value of a financial instrument traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active, if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These instruments are included in levell.

e The fair value of instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example privately negotiated
derivatives between two parties) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, instrument
is included in Level2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level3.

The following table sets forth the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured .at fair value as of
December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

, . December 31, December 31,
(in thousands of USS) 2019 2018

Assets

Financial asscts at fair value through OCI 3,361 3,493
Financtal assets at fair value through profit or loss 2.053
Total assets - 5 5,546

The Group measured financial assels as level 1 fair value through OCI for a total amount of US$ 2,547 thousands
(2018: USD} 2,672 thousands) and US$ 814 thousands (2018; USD$ 821 thousands) using level 3 inputs. Level 2
inputs were used to determine the fair value of the financial assets through profit or loss for a total amount of US$
34 thousand (2018: US$ 2,053 thousand). For further details, refer to Note (17) *Other financial assets’.

The carrying amount of short-term trade and other receivables and payables reasonably approximates fair value as
of December 31, 2019 and December 3t, 2018.

Credit Risk
The Group considers that it is not exposed to major concentrations of credit risk in relation to trade receivables.

However, credit risk can arise in the event of non-performance of a counterparty, particularly in relation to credit
exposures for trade and other receivables, financial instruments and cash and cash equivalents.
The credit risk to which the Group is exposed 10 be analysed by segment as follows:

1) Financial Services
In general, all costumers are relating to the financial services of Beltone financial group as follows:
financial segment of Investment Banking, Asset Management, Brokerage and Other financial Services.
i) Cable
In general, cable customers are offered maximum payment terms of 30 days, Customers are checked
for credit worthiness before offering credit terms.
iii) GSM
Substantially all customers in Lebanon are prepaid customers meaning that there is a low credit risk
associated with this GSM operation,
i) Investment property:
Substantially there is only one significant international client.
v} Other
Customers’ credit worthiness is reviewed before credit terms are offered. Accounts receivable are
monitored and outstanding balances are followed up until the balance is received.

I
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

The Group tries to mitigate credit risk by adopting specific control procedures, including assessing the credit
worthiness of the counterparty and limiting the exposure to any one counterparty. Accruals to the allowance of
doubtful receivables amounted to US$ 35,939 thousand during 2019 (US$ 29,590 thousand for the year ended
December 31, 2018). See also Note (19).

Credit nisk relating to cash and cash equivalents and financial deposits arises from the risk that the counterparty
becomes insolvent and accordingly is unable to return the deposited funds or execute the obligations under the
derivative transactions as a result of the insolvency.

In general, the receivables and financial receivables included in financial assets relate to a variety of small amounts
due from a wide range of counterparties, therefore, the Group does not consider that it has a significant concentration
of credit risk.

Liguidity Risk

The Group monitors and mitigates liquidity risk arising from the unceriainty of cash inflows and outflows by
maintaining sufficient liquidity of cash balances. In general, liquidity risk is monitored at entity level whereby each
subsidiary is responsible for managing and monitoring its cash flows and rolling liquidity reserve forecast in order
to ensure that it has sufficient committed facilities to meet its liquidity needs. '

Laws and regulations in certain countries, such as North Korea, in which the Group operates limit the conversion of
current cash balances into foreign currency. Given the nature of the business, Group companies may have to make
payments in foreign currencies (for example capital expenditures), the lack of individual entity foreign currency
reserves means that these companies are largely dependent on the Company to make these payments on its behalf,
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the gross

contractual, undiscounted cash flows including interest, charges and other fees.
. Carrying Lessthanlyear  Between1  More than
(in thousands of US$) amount 5 (%) W e N and5years  5years
Liabflitles
Liabilities to banks

Finance Jease Liability
‘Other borrowings

‘As Of December 31,2019

Carrying Expected cash Less than 1 year Between 1 More than

(in thousands of US$) amount flows (*) and S years 5 years
Liabilides

Liabilities to banks 156,343 164,637 105,001 55,346 4,290
Trade payables 59,891 59,891 59,8091 - -
Finance lcase liability 11,038 11,038 369 7,764 2,905
Other borrowings 2,744 2,941 1,725 1,216 -
As Of December31, 2018 230,016 238,507 166,986 64,326 7,195

* Expected cash flows are the gross contractual undiscounted cash flows including interest, charges and other fees.

Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

and (o maintain an optimal capital structure 1o reduce the cost of capital,

26
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Other risks

Governmental authorisations

Certain future Group activities, including the GSM operations in Lebanon or the cable segment, are dependent on
obtaining appropriate government authorisations. Should these authorisations not be obtained or delayed, there
could be an adverse impact on the future operations of the Group, such as a decrease in revenues or penalty payments

due to contractual counterparties.

Political and economic risk in emerging countries
A significant amount of the Group’s operations is conducted in Egypt, North Korea and Pakistan. The operations of

the Group depend on the market economy of the countries in which the subsidiaries or associate operate. In
particular, these markets are characterised by economies that are in various stages of development or are undergoing
restructuring. Therefore, the operating results of the Group are affected by the current and future economic and
political developments in these countries. In particular, the resulis of operations could be unfavourably affected by
changes in the political or governmental structures or weaknesses in the local economies in the countries where it
operates. These changes could also have an unfavourable impact on financial condition, performance and business

prospects.

Regulatory risk in emerging countries
Due 10 the nature of the legal and tax jurisdictions in the emerging countries where the Group operates, it is possible

that laws and regulations could be amended. This could include factors such as the current tendency to withhold tax
on the dividends of these subsidiaries, receiving excessive tax assessments, granting of relief to certain operations
and practices relating to foreign currency exchange. These factors could have an unfavourable effect on the financial
activities of the Group and on the ability to receive funds from the subsidiaries.

Revenue generated by the majority of the Group subsidiaries is expressed in local currency. The Group expects to
receive most of this revenue from its subsidiaries and therefore it relies on their ability to be able 1o transfer funds.
The regulations in the various countries, such as North Korea, where Koryolink operates could reduce the ability to
pay interest and dividends and to repay loans, credit instruments and securities expressed in foreign currency through
the transfer of currency. In addition, in some countries it could be difficult to convert large amounts of foreign
currency due to central bank regulations. The central banks may amend regulations in the future and therefore the

ability of the Company (o receive funds from its subsidiaries may change.

Government Approvals
Some of the activities of the Group, including the telecommunications activity in Lebanon and the marine cable

business, depend heavily on obtaining the approval of the concerned government authorities. The
telecommunications activity in Lebanon is in accordance with the agreement with the Ministry of
Telecommunications for the management of Mobile Interim Company One (MIC1) which expired in January 31,
2013 and are regularly updated.

In the event that such approvals cannot be obtained, this could have a negative effect on the Group's future activities,

such as lower revenues or fines by contracting parties.
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Classes of financial instrument

The tables below present the Groups financial assets and liabilities by category.

As of December 31, 2819

As of December 31, 2018

Am:r:iscd FVOCI Total
Cost

Assets per statement of financial pesition)

Cash and cash equivalents 106,565 - 106,565
Trade receivables 31,642 - 31,642
Other financial assets 115,719 3493 119,212
Other current assets! 2,071 - 2,071
Total 255,997 3493 259,490

As of December 31, 2018
Other fMnancial
liabilities nt Tatal

{in thousands of USS} amortized cost

Borrowings 170,125 170,125
Other non-current liabilities? 12 12
Trade payable and other current Jiabilities® B 70742 S 71,494 71,494
Total Be o 142234 | 241,631 241,631

? Excludes other payable due to local authorities and Prepaid traffic and deferred income, as these do not meet the definition of a
financial liability.
Segment reporting

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the board of directors of the Company. The board of
directors reviews the Group’s internal reperting in order to assess its performance and allocate resources, mainly from
a geographical perspective, of the mobile telecommunication business,

Pursuant to the decision to dispose of entities previously included in the Media and Technology segment, OIH
management has changed its internal reporting as analysed by the chief operating decision-maker and revised the

reportable operating segments as follows:

Financial Service: relating to the financial services of Beltone financial group represented in the group of
different financial segment of Investment Banking, Asset Management, Brokerage and Other financial
Services.

Investment property: investment properties relate to real estate property the Group owns in Sao Paolo, Brazil
GSM — Lebanon: relating to the management contract of the Lebanese mobile telecommunications operator
Alfa, which is owned by the Republic of Lebanon.

Cable: relating to the provision of direct broadband and high-speed connectivity to telecom operators, internet
service providers and major corporations through submarine fibre optic cables.

Other: includes Media & Technology (relating mainly to the provision of online advertising and content to
corporate customer, mobile value added services and software development and hosting of corporate clients)
and the Group's equity investments and income and expenses related to OIH.

The Group reports on operating segments, which are independently managed. The chief operating decision-
maker assesses the performance of such operating segments based on:

Total revenue;

EBITDA, defined as profit for the period before income tax expense /(benefit), impairment of associate, share
of profit/(loss) of investment in associates, foreign exchange gains /(loss), financial expense, financial
income, disposal of non-current assets, impairment charges and depreciation and amortisation; and

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property and equipment
and intangible assets other than goodwill.
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Revenue and EBITDA disclosure per segment

The following information is regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and is measured consistently

with that of the financial statements.

For the Perlod ended December 31,2019

For the Period ended December 31, 2018

) ) Total segment Inter Ravenue from Total Inter Revenue from
{in thousands of USS) [ 1!'1 : jepimel xter ol segment segment external EBITDA
i e s 1 FEVCORE S 2 cusiom revenuc revenue customers
Cabke 4458 M-, ; 45,046 . 45046 24317
Financial Services 18,730 - 18,730 2957
GSM Lebanon 7,200 - 7,200 10,530
Investment Property 3,683 - 3,683 2,326
Other 1,235 (1,235) - (20,041)
Total 75,894 (1,235) 74,659 20,089
Reconciliation of EBITDA to profit before income tax
{int thousands of LS5} ;'E .‘:;rl anr : L) F;:::;ﬁ:fg?'oz':]d&d
EBITDA 1,666 20,089
Depreciation and amortization (7.564)
Impairment charpes (1,020)
Disposal of non-current assels {187)
Financial income 3,450
Financial expense (9,767)
Foreign exchange (loss) (1,816)
Share of profit of equity investmenis 159,093
Impairment of associate (159,093)
(Loss) Profit belore income tax 3,185
Assets per segment
The following table illustrates assets for each reportable segment as they are regularly provided to the board of directors.
\s Of December 31,2019 As Of December 31,2018
fin thowsands of L'5S) Intangible  Investment [n.! !ﬂ’iii . Pf:::;") ln:::;hle Investment itl\'f:::::!’l:l s Total
ASSE Propert) cquipment Pruperiy
Cable 3 B3 62,196 1,422 - - 63,618
Investiment Property 50, 747 - 64,290 - 64,290
Financial Services 14,047 32,462 - - 46,509
Other 4,698 (33) - 123,439 128.104
Tatal 10,941 33851 64,290 123,439 302521

Reconciliation of assets allocated to total assets
{in thousands of US$)

As Of December 31,2018

Assets allacated 302,521
Other non-cusrent financial assels 14,086
Other non-current assets 13,224
Inventorics 413
Trade receivables 53,269
Other current financial assels 105,126
Other current assels 11,114
Assets hield for sale -
Cash and cash equivalents 106,565
Total assets 606,318
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Cupital expenditure

ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

The table below illustrates the capital expenditure incurred by each segment for the year ended December 31,2019
and the year ended December 31,2018:

(fn thousands af USS)

Cable

Financial Scrvices

Other

Total

6. Revenue

{in thousands of USS)

Interconnection traffic

Revenue form Financial services
Management contract -Fees
Investment Property Revenue
Other revenues

Total

Primary geographical
Brazil

Pakistan

Lebanon

Egypt

Major service Lines

Rental revenues
Managemeni Fees -
Funds

Performance Fees -
Funds

Other Financial
management Revenues

Success Fees
Retainer Fees
Brokerage Revenues
Cable rental

GSM Management
Agreement

Cthers

Timing of revenue

Products transferred at
point of sale

Services transferred over
period of time

kli]

Year ended

December 31, 2018

13,917

7,604
89,105
108,626

For the Period ended
December 31,2018

45,046
18,730
7,200
3,683

74,659

Management
Agreement

2,645
145
13,258
45,046

7.200

18,730

55,929
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

7. Purchases and services

Rental of local network, technical sites and other leases
Customer acquisition costs

Purchases of goods and changes in inventories
Band width cost

Maintenance costs

Utilitics

Brokerage Commissions

Advertising and promotional services
Consulting and professional services

Bank and post office charges

Insurance

Airlare

Accommodation, Meals and Per diem

IT Supplies and expense

Sites expense

Security Guards

Other service expenses

Total

For the Per;

Dec

p
L

For the Period ended
December 31,2018

6,917
384
881

4,086
2,323
1,099

43
1,483

10,557

782
161
214
440
237
122
210
447
30,386

The group has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term lease and low value
assets to be recognise as an expense on straight line basis over the lease term which amounted to US$ 121

thousands in 2019 (2018 US$ 47 thousands)..

8. Other expenses

fin thousands of USS)

Provisions for risks

Accruals for provisions, write downs and penalties

Promotion and gifts
Other operating expenses

Total

Personnel costs
{in thousands of USS)

Wages and salaries

Contractual bonuses

Other benefits

Pension costs

Social security

Subscription & Membership Dues
Other personnel costs

Total

3

For the Period ended
December 31,2018

8,839
611
33
4,644

14,127

For the Period ended
December 31,2018

19,290
748
746
764
424
331
244

22,547
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

10. Depreciation and Amortisation

{in thousands of L'SS)

Depreciation of tangible assets
Land and Buildings

Cable system and equipment
Commercial and other tangible assets
Right of Use (IFRS 16)
Depreciation of Investment property
Buildings

Amortization of intangible assets
License

Right of uze

Other

Total

11. Net financing (costs)

{in thousands of U'SS)

Interest income on deposits

Financial income

Interest expense on borrowings

Interest expense on trade and other liabilities
[mterest on lease liabilities

Other tnterest expense and financial charges
Impairment of financial assets

Financial expense

Foreign exchange (loss)}

Foreign exchange (loss)

Total

12. Investment in associates
Investment in associales primarily relate to the investment in the telecommunication operator in North Korea (Cheo

Technology Koryolink) and Sarwa capital.
The following table provides a breakdown of investments in associates:

For the Period ended
December 31,2018

168
3,185
1,369
1,049

1,429
164

24
176

7,564

For the Perlod ended For the Period ended

Company Country  Ownership
Cheo Technology-Koryolink (12-1) DPRK 75.00%
SARWA Capital (12-2) Egypt 2961%
Electronic Fund Admintstration Services Egypt 20.00%
International Fund Adminisimtion Services  Egypl 20.00%
Axes Holding company Egypt 33.90%

Impairment

(12-1) Koryolink

mber 31, % December 31,2018

3,450

3,450

(7,858)
(3}
(1,730}
(176)

(9,767)

(1,816)

(1,816)

(8,133)

Asof
| Deceraber 31, 2018 December 31, 2018
o 1500
104.67° 89,042
18
37
625
(358,087)
123,439

The tables below sets forth-summary financial information of the associate.

Summarised balance sheet
{(in thousands of US§)

Assets
Liabilities

Net assets

As OF
December 31, 2018
1,653,133
. (301,307)_ (260,822)
617,7 C1,302311
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Summarised income statement

For the ye For the year ended

{in thousands of USS) | Decemberan, 2019 |  December 31, 2018

Revenues i -ﬂmi 375,963
Total Expense (163,839)
Post tax profit from continuing operations 212,124
Share of profit of associates 159,093

The Company’s investments in North Korea related primarily to the 75% voting rights in the local telecom operator
Koryolink. The accounting treatment has been meodified during year ended December 31, 2015. Through,
recognizing it as an investment in associates instead of investment in subsidiaries, as the group management believes
that the existence of significant influence instead of control. Thus in light of the increase of the restrictions, financial
and operating difficulties facing Koryolink due to the international sanction imposed by the international community
including the United States of America, the European Union and the United Nations. These sanctions have the effect
of restricting financial transactions and the import and export of goods and services, including goods and services
required to operate, maintain and develop mobile networks. In addition to, the restrictions implemented on the
company that affect the ability of the subsidiary to transfer profits to the parent {return of funds to its native} and
the absence of a free-floating currency exchange market in North Korea, announced by the Central Bank of North
Korea, other than launching a competing local telecom operator wholly owned by the North Korean Government.
On September 11, 2017 the United Nations Security Council issued a resolution obliging member states of the
United Nations to pass laws prohibiting joint ventures and existing partnerships with the North Korean Republic
unless approval is obtained to continue such joint ventures. At the present, the company’s management submitted
an official request through the Government of the Arab Republic of Egypt in order to be excluded from adhering to
the said resolution.

On December 26, 2018, the request 1o the Security Council Committee established to follow up the implementation
of sanctions on North Korea was approved, with the exception of Koryolink, to ban foreign investment in North
Korea and to allow Orascom Investment Holding to continue its activities in North Korea. And Consider the
company as a telecommunications infrastructure company offering a public service.

The following table presents the movement on the investment of koryolink during the year:

(in thousands of US$) 2018

As of 1 January 34,748
Share of income of associate before impairment 159,093
Impairment {159,093)
Exchange difTerences (351)
As of December 31, 34,397
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

(12-2) Sarwa
On December 20,2018, the company purchased number of 216,032,608 share from shares of Sarwa capital, which
represents 30% of total equity by price per share 7.36 by total price EGP 1,590 million and it was financed by the
contract related to open credit facility with bank Audi by amount of USD 90 million during December 2018,
The Group has prepared the Purchase Price Allocations (PPA)} and relevant fair value adjustments of assets,
liabilities and related adjustments in the last quarter of 2019. The comparative figures for 2018 have been restated
to reflect the final figures which results in a final value of goodwill of 49,059,857 USD as follows:

(in thousands of USS) Decen ﬁ';]._r zi 2018
Total acquired assets without Goodwill 195,441
Total liabilities e {103,685)
Net assets as of December 31,2018 & S 01,750 ]

Identifiable assets due to acquiring 30% after PPA study
Tangible assets

Intangible assets Customer list

Other

Deferred tax

Net assets after PPA study

30% Group share of net assets

Consideration paid

Goodwill

- On May 9, 2019, the issued and paid-up capital have increased by a decision of Sarwa’s Board of Directors held
on March 3,2019. The increase of capital through the issuance of 28 Million shares at nominal value of EGP .16
amountcd to EGP 4,480,000, The total value of the increase is fully funded from the balance of retained earning.
The 28 Million shares issued for Employee Stock Ownership Plan ESOP approved by the Egyptian financial
regulator authority (FRA) on 26 February 2019.

- On October 3,2019 the issved and paid-up capital have increased by a decision of Sarwa’s Board of Directors
held on May 13,2019 and authorized by companics extraordinary general assembly dated Sep.8, 2019 through
distribution of free shares to sharcholders according to their investment percentage by 3 shares for every 5 shares
to be financed from retained earmning balance.

- Due to the above ESOP increased to be 44.8 Million shares and Company exercised 15.5 Million share for
Managers and employees, this leads to decrease the ownership of Orascom Investment Holding percentage from
30% 1o be 29.61as of 31 December 2019.

The following table presents the movement on the investment of Sarwa during the year:

{In thousand US§) For the year ended

December 31, 2018
Revenues 142,232
Total expense (127.387)
Net profit after tax 14,845
Holding share of net profit 13,991

Share of profit in associates

PPA cifect and other

Dilution for investment from 30% to 29,61% due to ESOP
Amortization {customer list)

Deferred tax

(In thousand {S$)

Opening balance

Share of profit in associates

Paid under increase of investment
Currency translation differences
Ending Balance
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

13. Income tax expense
Mote | For the year ended For the year ended

(in thousands of USS)

. December 31,2019 |  December 31, 2018
Current tax expense 7,500
Deferred tax {18) (1,524)
Total Income Tax Expenses 5,976

14. Property and equipment

Land and Cable system Commercial Assets under
(in thousands of US$) and and other Right of use
Buildings equipment tangible assets IFRS 16 S
Cost 11,838 69,715 6,903 11,678 1,752
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1,117) (13,203) (5.007) (1,377} ti1)
As of January 1,2019 10,721 56,832 LH%6 10,101 1.691
Additions 95 1,917 3,073 1,802 3,388
Disposals . {4) {482} - -
Change in scope ol consolidation-out (1,014) - (ROO) - -
Depreciation (270} (2,747) 2,373) (349) -
Depreciation including in discontinued - - (63) - ' -
Exchange differences 1,020 (5,333) 530 (484) {238)
Assets held for sale - - (79) (5,249) -
Reclassifications (10) (3,782) 5,241 - (1,449)
As of December 31,2019 10,542 46,583 6,941 5,821 3392
Cost 11,853 61,080 12,900 7060 3,392
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1311 (14,497} (5,95% (1,239} -

The assets include pledged assets of amount of USD 61 Million against credit facilities obtained to finance the cost
relating to laying of an undersea fiber optic cable in TWA company,

) Land and Cable system Commercial Assets under
(nthousandsof U i o0 et Mol G
Cost 13,673 346,045 9.693 - 3,731}
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1.695) (225,475) {4.630) - (1.859) |
As of January 1.2018 11,978 120,570 5,063 - 1,871
Additions 475 933 3,350 11678 2,457 §
Disposals - - (62) - -
Change in scope of consolidation-In 1,99) . - - -
Depreciation (168) (3,185) (1.369) (1,04%) -
Depreciation including in discontinued (297 (2,771) {1,638) (528) -
Exchange differences {1,068} (6,596) (5,755) - (289)
Assets held for sale {2,190) (50,546) (3) - (1,961)
Reclassifications & (1,923) 2,310 - (387
As of December3], 2018 10,721 56,532 1,896 10,101 1.691
Cost 11,838 (9,735 6,903 11678 1,752
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1117) {13,203) {5.007) (1.577) {61)

i5
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15. Intangible assets

{in thousands of 1/S$)

Cost

Accummilated amortization and impairment

As of Januarv 1,2019

Additions

Amortization

Amortization included in discontinued operation
Change in the scope of consolidation
Reclassifications

Assets held for sale *
Exchange differences

As of December 31, 2019
Cost
Accumudlated amortization and impairment

(in thousands of USS)

Cost

Accumulated amorsization and impairment

As of January 12018

Additions

Amortization

Amortization included in discontinued operation
Impairment loss

Disposals

Change in the scope of consolidation in coming
Reclassifications

Assets held for sale
Exchange differences

As of Decemhber 31,2018
Cost
Accumuiated amortization and impairment

ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

License  Goodwill Easements C“;t:;:er I;:f":
2.628 24,917 10,706 4,391 1409

(2.209) (438) (10,278) (662)  (166)

419 24,459 428 3,729 1,243

66 - 367 - -
(L)) - (102) (233) (74)

- - - (123) (26)

(16) (6,665) - - -

40 1,882 (8) 1,170 574

- (3,309) - 987y (37D

(47) 1,809 (51) 356 100

398 18,176 634 3912 1,243

L7 18,682 755 4,894 1,556

(1,749) {506) (121 (982 313)
License  Goodwill Easements Cu;t:;;mr ::f:
2,502 201522 21,956 4421 L4009
(719} (458} (10,254) (442 (140}
1,783 20,064 11,702 3,979 1,269
267 - 238 . -
(164) 24) (I57) (19
(163) - (63) {N
(1,163) - - -
(193) - - - -
217 b, 699 - - -
(179) - 292 - -
(242) - (11,702 - -
251 2,304 (78) 30) &
419 24,459 428 3,719 1,243
2,628 4917 10,706 4,391 1409
(2,209) {458) (18,278) {662) (166)

(239
(1,163)
(193)

6,91¢

{12,010)

* Goodwill equal 10 US$ 3,309 thousands as of December 31, 2019 (USS$ 3,309 thousands as of December 31, 2018),
was reclassified to assets held for sale (see note 32 for more details).
The following table provides an analysis of goodwill by segment reporting:

__ As Of December 31,2019
Media and
Technology

{in thousands of USS)

As of 1 January

Cost

Accumulated impairment
Change in scope
Reclassification

Assets held for sale
Exchange differences-Cost
As of 31 December

Cost
Accumulated impairment

Kli]

Cable

Financial
sector

{6,665)
1.887
{3,309)

As Of December 31,2018
'I]'\::l ::::}l':g Cable Financial  Total
sector

458 638 19426 20,522

(458) (458) - - {438)

(6,665) = & 6,699 6,699
1,882

(3,309) - : - -

- {48) {2.256) (2.304)

- 590 23,869 24,459

458 Joi 23,869 24,917

(458) - - (458)
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

16. Investment Property
The property investment balance comprises the value of seven floors which are owned by Vicloire in Brazil. The
property investment is carried at its historical cost.

(in thousands of U53) Dec\e'::ll;‘e:'sdle,dml 8

Cost 82,067
Accumulated amortization and impairment (5,094)
As of January 1, 76,973
Depreciation {1,420}
Exchange difTerences (11,254)
As of December 31, 64,290
Cast 69,993
Accumulaicd amoriization and impairment (5,703)

The fair value of seven floors, which are owned by Victoire in Brazil as property investment on December 31, 2019
amounted to US$ 92 million.

- Investment Property Revenue:

Year ended
December 31, 2018

3,683
1,655

1,220

(in thousands of US§)

Rental income

Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income
Direct operating expenses from property that did not generate rental
income

Leasing arrangement

A substantial part of the investment properties are leased to tenants under long-term operating leases with rentals
payable (monthly — in advance or in arrears). Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment properties
are as follows:

: 4 Asof As of
{in thousands af LSS} December3l, 2019 December 31, 2018
Within one year 3,670
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 14,680
More than 5 years =
17. Other financial assets
 Of December 31,2018 As Of December 31, 2018
Total

{in thousands of USS) . Non-current. Current "‘Total! Non-current _Current

5,88 4,785 11,667 3,043 1,091 4,134
7.550 101,282 109,532
3,493 - 3,493

* 2,053 2,053
14086 105,126 119,212

Financial receivables
Restricted Cash (17-1)
Financial assets at fair value through OCI {17-2)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (17-3)
Total

7
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

The following table shows the ageing analysis of financial receivables and long-term deposits:

As Of December 31, As Of December 31,

%19 2019
(in thousands of US3) Financinl receivables
Not past due 1,063
Past due 0-30 days -
Past due 31-120 days -
Past due 121-150 days -
Past due more than 150 days 3,071
4,134
17-1 Restricted cash
As Of December 31, 2018
(in thousands of US§) Non-current  Current Total
Pledged deposits 608 101,982 102,590
Cash on banks in North Korea 6,942 - 6,942
Total 7,550 101,982 109,532
17-2 Financial assets at fair value through OCI and available for sale
(in thonusands of USS) As of
Company name December 31, 2018
Egypt Opponunitics Fund 2,252
Misr for Central Clearing Depository and Registry 429
EGX 30 420
Guarantee Settlement Fund 375
El Arabi for Investment I
BMG -
MENA Capital 172
(Less) Impairment loss (166)
Total 3,493
17-3 Financial assets at Fair Value Through profit or Loss
Asof
{in thousands of USS) Deecmber 31, 2018
Investment in cash investment funds 816
Investment in investment funds 813
Treasury Bills 424
Total 2.053

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to performance obligations

that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the reporting date.

{in thousand of USS) 2L 2) . b2 2023 2024 More than S year
9
IRU LDN (TWA) ki = Skl 598 598 2,591
846 846 B46 B46 846 8,178

IRU Omantel {TWA)

38
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

18. Deferred taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes due to the same

tax authority.
As Of
December
(in thousands of US$) i 31,2018
Deferred tax liabilities, gross (13,000} (15,653)
Deferred tax assets offset £ __ﬁ_l_l: 388
Deferred tax liabilities (12,450} {15,265}
The movement in deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:
As Of December
(in thousands of US$} 31, 2018
As of January 1, (24,116)
(Charged ) credited to the income statement 1,838
Change in scope of consolidation 5,085
Liabilities held for sale °
Income tax for dividends distributed -
Exchange differences 1,928
As of December 31, (15,265)

Deferred tax liabilities

(in thousands of US$)

As of January 1st, 2019
(Charped )/ credited to the income statement 2,089) {1,293) 3,320
Change in scope of consolidation =
Liabilities held for sale g = -
Income tax for dividends distributed - 954

Exchange differences 665 (170) (228)

Depreciation Unremitted

910
376
593

(223)
Reclassification 1 ..{554) - 950 __'_FE-_F_“ {473).
As of December 31, 2019 (12,424) {1,831) (255) 2,060

Total

(15,265)
848

376

593

954

44

(12,450)

Deferred tax liabilities amo:t'i‘:ation earnings = o —
(in thousands of US$)

As of January 1st, 2018 (12,145) (959) (11,271) 259 (24,116)
{Charged )/ credited to the income statement (58) {1,329) 2,399 826 1,838
Change in scope of consolidation e - 5,085 - 5,085
Exchange differences 1,857 16 263 (208) 1,928
As of December 31, 2018 {10,346) (2,272) (3,524) B77 {15,265)

i9
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Generally, the Group does not recognise deferred tax assets for temporary differences related to accruals for

provisions, due 10 uncertainties in connection with the tax treatment of such expenses, as they might be challenged

by local tax authorities.

No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of temporary differences associated with investments in

subsidiaries, branches and associates, where the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the

temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Should additional information arise in future periods resulting in differences between the tax base and accounting

base of recorded assets and liabilities in the financial statements as at December 31, 2019, Management will reassess

its estimate in a way that might result in the recognition of deferred taxes related to those assets and liabilities.

19. Trade receivables

{in thousands of USS)

Receivables due from customers

Receivables due from telephone operators

Other trade receivables

Allowance for doubtful receivables

Total

(in thousands of USS)
At January |

Additions (allowances recognized as an expense)

Used
Reversal
Exchange differences

At December 31,

As OF
December 31,2018
61,704
20,466
689
(29,590)
53,269

As of December 31, 2018

28,480
4,382
17
(2,859)
(430

29,590

The following table shows the ageing analysis of trade receivables as of 31 December 2019 and 2018, net of the

relevant allowance for doubtful receivables:

(in thousands of USS)

Not past due

Past due 0-30 days

Past due 31-120 days

Past due 121 - 150 days
Past due more than 150 days

Trade receivables

As of December 31, 2018

38,398
1,005
2,376

106
11,384

53,269

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the receivable. The Group does

not hold any collateral as security.

40
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Other non-financial assets

(in thousands of USS) | ___AsOf | Fﬁ‘ﬁ_;,ﬁrm _ As Of December 31,2018
- Ji:.__._.[!ﬂlﬁ' ] vL,__ rot L Non-current  Current  Total
Prepaid expenses ' ( 2,693 19,267 13,224 2,848

Advances to suppliers 649 - 343

Receivables due from tax authority 907 207 o 401 401
Employee loans 7" (7t - 518 518
Assets from current tax 5,184 5,184 - 5453 5453
Other non trade receivables 4,470 4,470 - 1551 1,551
Allowance for doubtful current assets rﬂ*;},_ “'-51 : : .

Total 13,224 11,114 24,338

Cash and cash equivalent
As Of
(in thousands of USS} December 32,2018
Bank accounts and Depesits* 106,491
Cash on hand g4
Total 106,565

* Bank account and deposit as of December 31, 2019, includes an amount of § 1.6 million represent cash held in
Lebanon bank accounts, in accordance with the restrictions imposed by the Lebanese government on local banks in
Lebanon and restrictions on cash transfers outside the country.

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
Share capital

On 29 November 2011, the Company was incorporated with an authorised and issued share capital amounting to
EGP 2,203,190,060 Million (equivalent to US$ 366,148 thousand at date of transactions) distributed over
5,245,690,620 shares, each with a nominal value of EGP 0.42.

Non-distributable earnings

Retained eamnings include an amount of US$ 1,853 thousand as of December 31,2019 compared to US$ 1,511
thousand as of December 31,2018, which is not available for distribution representing a legal and special reserves
at the subsidiaries level,

Borrowings
As Of December 31,2018
(in thousands of US$) Current  Non-current Total
Liabilities to banks 109,335 47,008 156,343
Finance lease liability 369 10,669 1,038
Other borrowings 1,618 1,126 2,744
111,322 58,803 170,125

Loans for Trans World associate

Borrowings include loans obtained from the shareholders of Trans World associate private by an amount of US$
1.9 Million of which US$ 1 Million due within one year and US$ 0.9 Million due after more than one year with an
interest rate of 3.45% per annum.

Borrowings also include loans obtained from banks amounted to US$ 24.2 Million from which US$ 6.1 Million due
within one year and US$ 18.1 Million due afier more than one year these borrowings were obtained by Trans World
Associate Private with interest rates ranges between 12.48% to 15.44%,,

41



7T TR TR

O /N |

m I R

i}

AR OAR || R e W e

\ U W S

0 T B Y

ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Loan for the purpose of financing the acquisition of Victoire Group:

On September 28, 2015 the company borrowed non-current loan from a foreign bank by a maximum amount of
USD 35 Million for the sole purpose of financing 50% of the purchase price of seven floors in the “Patio Malzoni
Faria Lima Tower A” in Sao Paolo, Brazil through the direct or indirect acquisition of the shares of the following
companies incorporated in Brazil: Victoire 2, Victoire 9, Vicloire 11, Victoire 13, Victoire 17, Victoire 18, and
Victoire 19.

- Finance cost US$ 100 Thousand, worth on the date of signing the contract.
Interest and interest period

Interest shall be set at a variable rate of US Dollar the subjected bank reference rate +1%, currently set at 7.82% per
annum,

The interest shall be calculated on the basis of a year of Three hundred Sixty (360) days and the actval number of
days elapsed.

Financial covenants

The loan shall be covered at 200% by the real estate value of the floors during the financing period, and valuation
of the floors should occur every § months at the borrower’s expenses.

In the event the coverage falls at or below 175%, and at the option of the borrower, the loan will either be reduced
to maintain the ratio of 200%, or the borrower must grant an additional security acceptable to the lender in order 1o
maintain the coverage ratio at 200%.

Securities

- In favour of the lender of the total acquired shares in the capital of the companies owning the floors, and the
borrower shall deliver the certificates of the shares pledged.

- A chattel mortgage on all floors duly registered at the relevant real estate register in Sao Paolo Brazil.

- The borrower pledges to assign in favour of the lender of rental proceeds of the floors. The proceeds will be
transferred to the borrower’s account with the lender to cover interest and constitule a reserve account covering
one interest payment.

- An irrevocable undertaking by the borrower to cover by the second anniversary of the first drawdown, the balance
of the loan in principal and interest by a pledge account opened in his name.

- On Ociober 18, 2017 Orascom Investment Holding Company performed a reschedule agreement with bank Libano
Francaise through which the loan amounted US$ 33.4 million will be long-term loan due on three instalments
starts from October 2019 and ends October 2021, Provided that the total amount of the loan is mortgaged until
the Company fulfills the above mentioned guarantees.

Other credit facilities:

- On December 13, 2018, the Company made an agreement to open credit facility amounted to US$ 90,000,000
secured by US$ time deposits, where the percentage of finance makes up 90% of the secured time deposits and
on August 18, 2019 the company fully settled credit facility from pledged time deposit which guarantee credit
facility.

- The credit bank facilities granted to Beltone Financial Holding one of Group components for financing the
settlement of guarantee against payment conceming brokerage sector and these facilities are unsecured and
bearing average interest market rate.
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The following table shows the movement of borrowings during the year:
Liabilities to banks and Other Borrowings as of December 31, 2019

Liabilities due to banks and other Borrowings are detailed in Appendix B.

within one
year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years after 5 years Total

{in thousands of USS$)
Liabilities to banks 2019 45,69¢ 847 99 ) 129 c
Liabilties to banks 2018 109,335 4,353 32,122 1.739 4,276 4,518 156,343
Finance lease liability 2013 45 | 596 1,04
Finance lease liability 2078 369 2,460 1,692 1,821 179 2,905 1,038
Other borrowings 2019 044 ] ; :
Other borrowings 2018 1618 242 393 451 = £ 2,744
As Of December 31,2019 47484 9931 7239
As Of December 31,2018 111,322 7,055 34,207 4,051 6,067 7423 170,125

Finance lease liabilities

(in thousands of USS) As of Deeember 31,2018
Gross finance lease liabilities — minimum lease payments '
Within one year 1,474
Between 1-5 years 7,359
Over 5 years 3,155
Future finance charges on finance leases (950)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 11,038
The present value of finance lease linbilities is as follows:
Within one year 369
Between 1-5 years 7,764
Over 5 years 2.905
11,038

Other Borrowings

Other borrowings mainly include loans from non-controlling shareholders in subsidiaries. The detail of “Other
borrowings” is included in Appendix B.

Currency Information of current and non-cerrent borrowings

The following table provides the breakdown of total borrowings by currency of issue;

Egyptian
(in thousands of USS) Uss$ Pakistan Rupee Others Totat
Pound
As of December 31,2019 25,946 29,344
As of December 31,2018 131,914 5,589 32,622 - 170,125
43
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

The following table illustrate the movements in the borrowings during the period

(in thousands of USS) As of December 31, 2018
Current borrowings 15,087
Non-current borrowings 64,495
Balance at the beginning of the year 79,582
payments of loans {22,680)
Proceeds from loans 110,142
Transferred to Liabilities held for sale -
Interest paid (9,315)
Interest paid for discontinued operations (292)
Foreign exchange differences 12,688
Balance at the end of the year 170,125
Current borrowings 1§1,322
Non-current borrowings 58,803
-Details of borrowings are included in appendix B.
24. Trade payables and other liabilities

{in thousands ol US$) As Of December 31,2019 As Of December 31,2018

N on-curfont [otal Current  Non-current Total
Trade Pavabie N
Capital expenditure payables 4,752 . 4,752
Trade payables due to suppliers 15,042 15,042 8,439 - 8,439
Customers credit balance 13,501 4),038 - 41,038
Trade payables to Telephone operator : 1,004 2,835 - 2,835
Other trade payables 2,827 - 1,827
Total 59,801 - 59,891
Qther pavable
Prepaid traffic and deferred income 339 3,408 3,747
Due to local authorities 3,155 - 3,155
Personnel payables 3,022 3,022
Subscriber depaosits 38 38
Other credit balances 8,543 22436 30979
Total 15,097 25,844 40,941
Total 74,988 25844 100,832

The other credit balance includes the balance of employee benefits where OIH by virtue of the Management
Agreement signed with the Ministry of Telecommunications manages MIC1 SAL on behalf of the republic of
Lebanon owner of both mobile networks operators. Orascom Telecom Lebanon SAL (OTL) is created in order to
manage the personnel of MIC, as employer, yet all personnel costs are charged to and reimbursed by the Lebanese
Government as per the term of the management agreement, This balances classified as non-current in 2018 while in
2019 classified as current due to termination of management contract with ministry of Telecommunications

the break down of employees benefit which included in current other credit balance as below:
Reclassed from

AS O 0 Asof
. i _ Benefits paid/ - non-current to
December. | ..
{in thousands of USS) fi-i"il 3 disbursements Contributions current other December
¥ 31,2018
[ ety credit balance
Employees termination benefits (906) 793 12,754 -
Other defined henefit obligations (9.670) 7.255 ‘ 9,670 -
Total employee benefits (10,576) 8,048 22,424 -
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING 5.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

The following table illustrate the movements in prepaid traffic and deferred income during the year:

Amounts Additional

, . As of Currency Other recognised RIS L]
(in thousands of US$) D+ ’{%T:]Z{ﬁ translation  Changes within arising  January 1,

1, 261! Revenue over the 2019

vear
Deferred Revenue - current (446) 282 217 414 33s
Deferred Revenue - non-current (350) (282) - 4,573 3,408
Long term payable TES - - - 293 -
{796) - 217 5,280 1,747
Amounts Additional

Liability Other recognised amounts Asof

(in thousands of USS) December | held for Ch arising  Januaryl,
el anges within
31,2019 sale Revenwe V" the 2018
N Year
Deferred Revenue - current - __?H-f 1,344 (56) 176 (220) 1,583
Deferred Revenue - non-current | 9,957 (17D - - 13,194
11,301 {227} 176 {220) 14,777
25. Provisions

{in thousands of USS) A December 31, 2015
As of January 1, 20,723
Additions 8,833
No longer required -
Currency translation differences 118
Change in scope (6,633)
Utilized -
As of December 31, 23,041

26. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. For the purposes of the earnings per share
calculation, it has been assumed that the number of issued shares at the date of incorporation (3,245,690 thousand)
had been outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. During the period covered by the report, the Company
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares and as such diluted and basic earnings per share from continuing

operations and from discontinued operations are equal.

{Losses) per share from continuing operations — basic and diluted (in USS)

: For the year ended
(in thousands of USS) December 31, 2018
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company from (6,584)

continuing operations (in thousands af US$)
Weighted average number of shares (in thousands of shares} |0 : 5,245,691 5,245.691
Earnings per share — basic and diluted (in USS) {0.001)
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Earnings / (Losses) per share from discontinued operations - basic and diluted (in USS$)

; For the year ended For the year ended
(LGET SO _____j;.ﬁ% _[nfﬂl_ﬂ' " December 31,2018
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company from [ TR T _F,_h (52,665)
discontinued operations (in thousands of USS) fan -
Weighted average number of shares (in thousands of shares) |0 5.245,69] 5,245,691
Earnings per share — basic and diluted (in US$) e __ 0.0007. (0.01)

27. Business Combination

27-A Auerbach Grayson Company

On September 25, 2016, the BOD of Beltone Financial Holding approved the acquisition of 60 % of AGCO Company

through one of subsidiaries (New Frontier securities ~-USA}) by USS 24 million. The acquisition agreement includes three

call / put options as follows:

1-Within one year from the agreement date , the seller has the right to purchase 9% of AGCO shares which is owned by
New Frontier Securities company against an agreed upon consideration and conditions,

2-Commencing 3 years from the agreement date. The buyer has the option to buy part or all of Non-Controlling Interest
(NCI) against an agreed upon consideration and conditions.

3-Commencing 5 years from the agreement date, the seller has the option to exercise a right to sell all of its shares
against an agreed upon consideration and conditions.

On January 30, 2017 the company had the USA regulatory approval to practice brokerage activity in US$ and to acquire

a share in Auerbach Grayson & Company -USA (AGCO) and the rest of procedures were followed till February 1, 2017

which is considered as the “acquisition date™.

The company determined the primary accounting for business combination for acquiring AGCO temporarily on February

1,2017. and to continue the study of the fair value of determined identifiable assets and liabilities including the intangible

assets in the acquisition date (if exists)

According to the agreement, an amount of US$ 2 million were escrowed as the group has the right of deducting any

unrecorded liabilities could arise (For example but not limited to : Law suits or any events result in Financial damage ,

customer troubles, Vendors etc. ......).

It was subsequently agreed that this value amounted to US$676 500

The Group has prepared the Purchase Price Allocations (PPA} and relevant fair value adjustments of assets, liabilities and

related adjustments in the last quarter of 2018. The comparative figures for 2017 have been restated to refiect the final

figures (note no 33) which results in a final value of goodwill of 3 300 385 US$ as follows:

(in thousands of USS)

Intangible assets
Net owned assets

Acquisition percentage

Derivatives

Deferred tax liability

Holding Company's share of net assets acquired
Consideration

Cash

Deferred consideration

Total Considerations

Goodwill

The balance of financial derivatives represented at fair value of the right of the second option of New Frontier company is
as follows:

{in thousands of USS$) 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
USD UsD
Derivatives — options 4,862
4862
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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27-B Discontinued Operations

Discontinued aperations represent as following:

 For the year ended

(in thousands of’ USS)

For the year ended

| December 31,2019 7 December 31, 2018
Discontinued operation from Riza capital disposal 17-B-1 . w (6,596)
Discontinued operation from Auerbach Grayson Held for sale  17-B-2 (6,528)
Discontinued operation from Mena cable disposal 17-B-3 (46,128)
(Loss) from discontinued operation (net of income tax) (59,252)

27-B-1 Riza Capital

On September 10, 2019, OTMT Brazil Holding sold its entire shares in Riza Capital, with an ownership of
57.5%, to Marko Auriello for a consideration amounting to US$ 13,323,850 paid on six semi-annual
installments, each amounting to US$ 2,220,642, where the last installment will be received on

February 28, 2022,
Discontinued operations calculated as the following for the period ended December 30, 2019:
(in thousands of USS)

Proceeds from sale

(Less):
Net assets (5.445)
Foreign exchange differences excluded 197

Net assets (Minority share)
Losses of Riza Capital for the year
Group’s profits from the disposal

Riza Capital’s Losses for the year presented as following:

December 31,2019

(in thousands of USS) | December 31,2018
Operating revenue y 3,223
Operating expenses (715)
Operating Loss 2,508
Other expenses (9,104)
Net income for the year (6,596)
Distributed as
The company’s share (3,795)
The minority’s share (2,801)
(6,596)

27-B-2 Auerbach Grayson

During the year, a board of directors of Beltone decided to authorize the chairman and managing director 1o take the
necessary decisions and negotiate for selling of Beltone Financial Holding's stake in Auerbach Grayson, which is wholly
owned by NEW FRONTIER (one of Beltone's subsidiaries) and the company started activity to determine The buyer ,
Accordingly Auerbach Grayson assets and liabilities presented as held for Sale in accordance with IFRS Standard No. (5).
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Auerbach Grayson’s Losses for the year presented as following:

(in thousands of USS) December 31,201 December 31,2018
Revenues s H_ 20,497
Total revenues 20,497
Other expense (27,113)
Deferred tax gy 88
Net losses for the year [ WIiE r(-iz:ilu._ (6,528
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

27-B-3 MENA Cable

On May 21, 2018 Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E. (Formerly Orascom Telecom Media and Technology Holding).
(“OIH") announced that it has executed a Sale and Purchase Agreement with Egyptian International Submarine Cables
Company, a 50% owned Subsidiary of Telecom Egypt, for the sale of its entire, direct and indirect, shareholding of its
subsidiary Middle East and North Africa Submarine Cable (“MENA Cable™) for a total value of USD 90 million. OIH

holds a 100% stake in MENA Cable.
Discontinued operations calculated as the followings:

{in thousands of USS)  December31,20197  December 31,2018
Proceeds from sale K Tl 87,633
Less:
Selling expenses (327)
Liabilities held for sale 27,583
Assets held for sale (82,417)
Mena Cable Losses for the period (5,522
Foreign exchange differences excluded (78,305)
Deferred taxes 5,227
Group profits from disposal {46,128)
Mena Cable Losses for the period
(in thousands of US$) December 31,2018
Operating revenue 2,019
Cost of purchases, service and other expense (7.541)
Operating Loss (5,522)
Income tax -
Total (5,522)

28. Subsidiarics
Represent non-wholly owned subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest (Beltone and TWA)

Company Country Percentage of non-controlling ownership Value of non-controlling ownership
{in thousands of USS}) 2019 2018

Transworld associate (TWA}) Pakistan 15,922
Beltone financial management  Egypt 4,954

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights in the subsidiary
undertakings held directly by the Company do not differ from the propertion of ordinary shares held. The Company does
not have any shareholdings in preference share of subsidiaries included in the Group.,

Summarised financial information of non-wholly owned subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests.

(in thousands of USS) Trans World Associates (Pvt) Lid Beltone Mnancial management

As of 31, December As of 31, December

Current 2018 2018

Current assets 20,082 66,151
Current liabilitics S (25,874) {75,516)
Total current net asscts {5,792) (9,365)
Non-curreni assets 72,526 24,729
Non-current liabilities {33,788) 1,021
Total non-current net assets 38,738 23,708
Net assels 32,946 14,343

The above information is the mnount before intercompany eliminations.
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

{in thousands of LSS} Trans World Associates (Pvt) Ltd Beltone financial management

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the yeor ended
_ December31,29° | December 31,2018 | Decer LIJ—r_‘_':“ _'_{j[,l'__ .| December 31, 2018
Revenue 44,820 39,548
Profit (loss) before income tax 12,704 (5,345}
Income tax expense (3,581) [ {1,495)
Post tax profit (loss) from continuing operations 9,123 {6,840)
Loss from discontinued operation - .
Other comprehensive (Joss) | income (7.344) (3,699)
Total comprehensive income 1,779 (10,539}
Total comprehensive income allocated to
36 2,226

non-contrelling interests

The above information is the amount before intercompany eliminations.

Trans World Associates (Pvt) Ltd  Beltone Financial Management
For the year ended December 31,

87, 13,933 R
} 8.185) 5

(in thousands of USS)

Net cash flows generated by / (used in) operating activities
Net cash flows generated by / (used in) investing activities
Net cash flows generated by / (used in) financing activities
Net change in cash during the year

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year ]
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 7] 48,627

The above information are the amount before intercompany eliminations.

29. Commitments

The commitments as of 31 December 2019 and 2018 are provided in the table below:

As of
{in thousunds of USS) December 31, 2018
Purchase of property and equipment 5,214
Others 12,054
Total 17,268

Other capital engagements are the group's obligations arising from the lease commitment of Auerbach Grayson &
Co for the amount equivalent to US$5.75 million , pius the amount equivalent to US$1.9 million to the contract of

Trans World associales (subsidiary).
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

Related party transactions

Transactions with subsidiaries, associales, with the Parent Company and its subsidiaries and other related parties
are not considered atypical or unusuval, as they fall within the Group’s normal course of business and are conducted
under market conditions that would be performed by independent third parties.

The main related party transactions are summarised as follows:

Ycar ended
December, 31,2018
Purchase Selling of services
of services 4 eood Consultancy
and goods Ha Booas
OTMT
CHEO - 378 -
Others
LTD Orastar - - (78)
Dr Omar Zawawy (sharcholder of a subsidiary) . - (20)
As of " Asof
(in thousands af USS) December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Receivabl Payabhli Receivables Payables
LTD Ormastar - 2,832
Omar Zawawy {sharcholder of a subsidiary) 726
Belton Mena Equity Fund 27 5
EGX funds company 1 -
Misr Belione - 339
Intemational Fund Management Service Co. - 106
Electronic Fund Management Service Co, - 34

31.

Key management compensation

Key management includes executive and non-executive directors, the chief financial officer and other managing
directors considered key personnel.

The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services amounted to US$ 1,342 thousand and
US$ 2,812 thousand respectively for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Contingent assets and liabilities

The contingent liabilities, are represented in guarantees issued by the holding company and related to the activities of
its subsidiaries, as follows:

Transworld Associates (Subsidiary)

-  Bank guarantee issued in favor of Higher Education Commission (HEC) amounting to U§$37,540
valid till December 31, 2020,

- 'Bank guaraniees issued in favour of Inbox Business Technologies (Private) Limited amounting to US$
35,087 valid till May 09, 2020.

- 'Letter of credit issued in favour of Huawei International Co. Ltd. amounting to CNY 630,745.56 valid
till January 21, 2020.

- Letter of credit issued in favour of Subcom, LLC amounting to US$ 6,408 valid till January 21, 2020.
- 'Letter of credit issued in favour of Premier Systems FZE amounting to US$ 410,000 valid till April 04, 2020.
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32. Assets and Liabilities held for sale
During the year, a board of directors of Beltone decided 1o authorize the chairman and managing director to take the
necessary decisions and negotiate for selling of Beltone Financial Holding's stake in Auerbach Grayson, which is wholly
owned by NEW FRONTIER (one of Beltone's subsidiaries) and the company started activity to determine The buyer ,
Accordingly Auerbach Grayson assets and liabilities presented as held for Sale in accordance with IFRS Standard No. (5).
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Assets held for sales
(in thousands of USS)
(in thousands af USS)
Fixed assets

Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Due from companies operating in the securities field
Account receivable

Debtors and other debit balance

Cash and Cash at bank

Total Assets held for sales
Liabilities associated to assets held for sale
Deferred tax

Trade payable and other credit balances
Lease liabilities

Total Liabilities associated to assets held for sale

33. Opening balance Restatement

The following schedule summarize the reclassification of comparative figures of the consolidated profit or loss for

the year ended 31 December 2018 to match current year classifications as follows:

Continued Operations

(in thousands of USS) Reclassification
Revenucs (23,6300 |
Other income 12,579 (89)
Purchases and services (48.109) 17,723

Other expenses

Personnel cost

Depreciation and amortization
Impairment charges

Disposal of non-current assets
Operating income! {loss)

Financial income

Financial expense

Foreign exchange (loss)

Share of profits of investment in
associates

Impairment of investments in associate

(loss)/Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
(Loss)/ Profit for the year

Discontinued operations
Profit / (Loss) from discontinued

operation (net of income tax}
{Loss) Profit for the year

5]

(15,053)
(38,914)
(8, ¥
{1,102}

87}

926
16,367
1,063
B2

)
156
618
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ORASCOM INVESTMENT HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

34. Subsequent events
~ The recent outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) continues to impact the global economy and markets.
Going forward the COVID-19 outbreak may negatively impact amongst others our supply chain, workforce,
operations, demand of our end markets, and liquidity. Accordingly, The Management has set up a COVID-19
taskforce to develop and implement contingency plans, and we are closely and continuously evaluating the
developments. We will take all necessary actions to keep our operations
running and, most importantly, protect our employees, suppliers, customers and all other stakeholders. Based on
our current knowledge and available information, we do not expect COVID-19 to have an impact on our ability to
continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future.
During January 2020, the company made early payment of the full value of the loan related to direct or indirect
acquisition of the shares of the companies that own the Brazil Building, the balance of the loan on December 31,
2019, amounted to 23,413 thousand dollar, as the shares were unpledged by the bank during January 2020.
On Febrary 27, 2020, the Board of Directors of Sarwa Capital Company proposed to distribute cash dividends to
shareholders for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019, with a total value of 117,759,480 EGP, the share of the
profits will be 10 piasters per share, the company's share of the dividends declared will be about 34.5 million
Egyptian pounds before the tax on dividends.
On December 2019, the company’s board of directors received a letter from the Lebanese Ministry of
Communications regarding the non-renewal of the management contract concluded between Orascom Investment
Holding Company and the Lebanese Ministry of Communications, due to the current events in Lebanon, the
company was not handed over to the Lebanese Ministry of Communications, and the group has managed the
Lebanese company till now with the same conditions as the old contract. During September 2020, the process of
transferring the management of Alfa Company from Orascom Telecomn Lebanon to the Ministry of Communications
was completed, in implementation of the Cabinet Resolution issued on May 5, 2020 and afier fulfilling all the
requirements of the management contract.
During April 2020, Beltone Financial Holding, which is owned by Orascom Investment Holding Company by
74.55%, has signed an agreement to sell its subsidiary Auerbach Grayson with a group of investors. All sales
procedures will be terminated afier obtaining the approval of the Financial Sector Authority in the United States of
America.
On July 9, 2020, the board of directors of the Company approved the detailed demerger plan of the Company into
two companies where the demerged company will be called “Oracom Investment Holding” (the demerged company)
where it will include company’s investments in companies that operate in different fields. The other company will
be called *Orascom Financial Holding” (the new company) which will include the investments of the company in
companies that operate in the financial-non-banking sector which are Beltone financial holding (subsidiary) and
Sarwa capital (associate). On September 6, 2020, the Egyptian Financial Supervisory Authority approved the
detailed division project for the company, and the extraordinary general meeting is being invited to approve the
division project.
- On September 30, 2020, Orascom Pyramids for Entertainment {(one of the group’s subsidiaries) signed a long-term
financing contract with the Societe Arabe Internationale de Bangue with an amount of EGP 230 million to be repaid

on 24 quarter-annual installments starting from January 2023 and ending on October 2028.

1

35. Reclassification of some comparative numbers:

- During the year ended December 31, 2019, the company reclassified the comparative figures of the retained
eamnings and translation reserve related to the year ended December 31, 2018, in order to correct an amount
charged to the currency translation reserve instead of the retained earnings, in one of the group’s
subsidiaries, amounting to USD 2,213 K.

e S Vs

Chief Financial Officer Executive Chairman and Managing Director
Khalid Ellaicy Naguib Sawiris
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